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IN TIfE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE llTM 
JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CRIMINAL DIVISION 
CASE NO, 7 6 - 8 1 4 5  ( n u r a n t )  
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1 

Plaintiff, 1 
1 

V B .  1 
1 

VALENTIN HERNANDEZ I 1 
1 

Defendant .  1 

Miami,  Florida 
lJovambar 1 5 ,  1977 
3:00 o'clock P.M. 

APPEARANCES : 

RICHARD E. G E R S T E I N ,  E S Q . ,  S t a t e  
At-tornay,  by ROBERT K A Y E ,  ESQ., 
Assistant S t a t &  A t t o r n q y ,  appaaring 
on b e h a l f  of the Plaintiff, 

N A T H A N I E L  L. DARONC, JR., E S Q . ,  and 
CARLING 11. STEDMAN, E S Q . ,  Special 
A s s i s t a n t ,  Public nafandar, appear ing  
on b e h a l f  of t h e  Defendant. 

- - . I - - -  
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D @ p o s i t i o n  o f  MILAGROS NIEVES, taken 

by Lhs Defendant far t h e  p u r p o e s  o f  d i s c o v e r y  and f o r  

use as e v i d e n c e  i n  the a b o v e - s t y l e d  cause,  w h e r e i n  

S k a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  i s  t h e  P l a i n t i f f  and  V a l s n t i n  

Hernandez i s  t h e  D e f e n d a n t ,  p e n d i n g  i n  t h e  C i r c u i t  

Court  o f  t h e  E l s v e n t h  J u d i c i a l  C i r c u i t  i n  a n d  f o r  Dad8 

Coun ty ,  F l o r i d a ,  C r i m i n a l  D i v i s i o n ,  p u r s u a n t  to n o t i c e  

h e r e t o f o r e  f i l e d ,  h s f o r s  LONNIE C .  MORRIS, a N o t a r y  

P u b l i c  i n  and f o r  the S t a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  at L a r g e ,  at 

R o o m  810 ,  Dads County  Law L i b r a r y ,  M e t r o p o l i t a n  

J u s t i c a  B u i l d i n g ,  1 3 5 1  N o r t h w e s t  1 2 t h  S t r e e t ,  M i a m i ,  

F l o r i d a ,  o n  t h e  1 5 t h  day o f  November 1 9 7 7 ,  commencing 

at 3:00 o ' c l o c k  P.M. 

- o c - . . .  

Thereupon--  

FAUSTO O S O R I O  

w a s  d u l y  sworn  t o  t r u t h f u l l y  and f a i t h f u l l y  p e r f o r m  

the d u k i a o  of .Xn t ; c rp re t e r ,  t r a n s l a t i n g  f rom E n g l i s h  

to S p a n i s h  and S p a n i s h  t o  E n g l i s h .  

Thereupon-  

MILAGROS NIEVES, 

a w i t n e s s  named i n  the n o t i c e  h e r e t o f o r e  f i l e d ,  

M A T Z .  T R A K T M A N  & A S S O C I A T E S  

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS 

31 6 BISCAYNE BUILDING 

MIAMI. FLORIDA 8 



called by the Defendant, was first duly sworn in the 

above cause and testified, through t h e  Interpreter, 

as followst 

BY MR. STEDMAN: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

Q Would you s t a b  your name, p 

A Milagros Mieves. 

Q What ie your home address? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

this case, aru  

A 

6038 Southwest 24th Street, Miami. 

Do you have a phone? 

Y e s .  

What is tha number? 

666-4020. 

You are the widow of the 8:csassd'in 

you not? 

Yes 0 

you have any minor children at this time? 

A Four, 
.- 

Q What are their names and ages, please, 

ma ' am? 

A Otmara Nieves is 16 years old. Fernand 

Q A r s  you a mother? That is ko say, do 

Niavss is 14, Elizabsth Niavea is t e n  years old and 
- 1 .  

\t 15 d n e  ye8n?i - o ~ o ,  
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Q Do all of these children live w i t h  

you present ly?  

Q Are you prascnt.ly employed outaide of I 
the home,? 

A No, I am studying now, 

Q WhaG are you presently studying? 

A Typing and English, 

Q A r e  you in t h e  public school system 

o r  in tha University system or in a p r i v a t e  school? 

A I am at the English Canter and the I 
University. I 

C) Whore and when did you f i r - s t  marry t h e  

dacaasad? 

A In S a n t a  Clara, Cuba, on t h e  25th of 

Q Approximately h o w  old was he at t h a t  

t i m e ,  please? 

.- A Twenty-seven. 

Q Ware you born in Cuba? 

A Y e s  I 
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A Yas. 
I 

Q Where were you born,  please? 

A Santa Clara. 

Q Where was ha born,  i f  you know? 

A Santa C l a r a .  

A March 1 9 6 6 .  

Q Without a s k i n g  your age and I am not 

prying i n  that d i r e c t i o n ,  b u t  were you a n  adult? 

A I c a n  t e l l  you my age, 

9 You wers a n  a d u l t  a t  that t i m e ?  

A Y s s ,  I was, I had two c h i l d r e n  already 

a t  t h e  t i m e .  

Q What type of work d i d  you d o  i n  Cuba, 

p l e a s e ?  

A I d i d  some sawing i n  the home but I did 

not work outside of that. 

0 What 1:ypa of work d i d  your husband d o  

b e f o r e  ha l e f t  Cuba, please? 
.- 

A ne was a c a p t a i n  i n  the army. He 

worked in the h e a l t h  department.  When h a  was young, 

ha worked for Ambrosia Industries, and his brothers 

wars salesmen far t h s *  company and h e  was working w i t 1  

you firat come t.o this co untry?  

I 

1 

1 
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-, 

thabm. 

0 What d i d  your husband do f o r  Ambroaia 

I n d u s t r i e s ?  

A H a  was s e l l i n g  p r o d u c t s  t o  the 

b u s i n e s s  p l a c e s ,  

Q What t y p e  of products did t h a  company 

m a n u f a c t u r e ?  

A A 1 1  k i n d s  of c h o c o l a t e s ,  c o o k i e s ,  

8 During  the t i m e  that your  husband was 

a c a p t a i n  i n  the army, d i d  h e  work at that t i m e  i n  

a c i v i l i a n  capacity for t h e  government? 

A No 

Q What d i d  ha d o  i n  the h e a l t h  d a p a r t -  

ment when hs worked there? 

A He was in charge of the d e p a r t m e n t  i n  

Mar ianao ,  b u t  I d o n ' t  know what. ha w a s  d o i n g .  

0 Was he A c i v i l i a n  at. that t i m e ?  

A Y e s .  

.- Q W h ~ n  d i d  ha j o i n  the army activsly, 

i f  you r e c a l l ?  

A B e f o r e  r e v o l u t i o n a r i e s  t o o k  o v e r  

in Cuba. 

0 Did he j o i n  G e n e r a l  B a k i s t a ' s  army? 
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A No. 

Q Premier Castro's army? 

A Y e s ,  Castro. Ha was with Castro's 

army. 

Q Was he working for the health depart- 

ment a t  the t ima that he  joined t h e  army? 

A No. He became a mambar of the health 

department after ha got out of the army. 

Q A f t e r  Lha rsvolution? 

A Yes, a f l s r  the revolution. 

Q What was your husband doing just p r i o r  

to joining up with the rsvolutionists? 

A Selling for Ambrosia. 

Q What capacity did your husband serva. 

I understand he was a captain, but was he in the 

infantry or the air force or the artillary or what? 

A Ha was just with the army. 

Q What d i d  he do in his capacity in the 

army, if you know, as a captain? .- 

A H e  was captain a i d s  to Camilos 

Cianfuegos. 

Q Who was that parson? 

A 11s was a major in t h e  army. 



Q What d i d  y o u r  husband  do a s  a i d e  t o  

t h i s  p e r s o n ?  

A Ha was w o r k i n g  r i g h t  t h e r e  i n  t h e  

o f f i c e  h e l p i n g .  At. that t i m e ,  I was not m a r r i e d  t o  

him. I was h i s  Q i a n c s e .  I was engaged  to him. 

MR. KAYE: L e t  t h e  r e c o r d  r e f l e c t  t h a t  

I t h i n k  t h a t .  wa h a v e  g o n e  a s  f a r  i n t o  t h e  background  

as this i s  c o n c e r n e d  and I would o b j e c t  t o  a n y  quas- 

tions r e l a t i n g  t o  what h e  d i d  i n  Cuba i n  t h e  y e a r s  

b e f o r e  t h i s  o c c u r r e d  o r  f o r  that matter ,  what ha  d i d  

i n  Cuba b e f o r e .  

MR. STEDMAN: Would you l i k e  to p u t  

y o u r  r e a s o n  f o r  the o b j e c t i o n  i n t o  tha r e c o r d ?  

MR. KAYE: It i s  i r r e l e v a n t .  

MR. STEDMAN: 1 am g o i n g  t o  c o n t i n u e  

a n d  p u r s u e  t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n .  

You can exclude h e r  t e s t i m o n y ,  i f  

n e c e s s a r y ,  a t  t h e  time of t r i a l  r a t h e r  than c e r t i f y  

it and g o  through t h a t ,  b u t ,  again, I am going t o  
.- 

p u r s u e  it. I a m  n o t  g o i n g  i n t o  it much more ,  p s n e -  

t r a  t i n g  i n t o  this, but I think what  he d i d  i n  h i s  

m i l i t a r y  c a p a c i t y  i s  i m p o r t a n t .  t o  t h i s  c a s e .  

MR. KAYE: If she knows. 
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M R .  STEDMAM: A l l  t h e  a n s w e r s  to t h e  

q u e s t i o n s  would be i f  s h e  knows. 

Q (By M r .  Stedman) What f u n c t i o n s  d i d  

( y o u r  husband p e r f o r m  i n  h i s  m i l i t a r y  c a p a c i t y ,  if you  / 
know, and I u n d e r s t a n d  you ware engaged l o  him a t  

t h e  t i m a ,  

A He was i n  c h a r g e  of some s e c t i o n s  i n  

the navy  p a r t  of it. Then h a  was a l s o  i n  c h a r g e  of 

some sections of t h e  a i r  c o r p s .  

Q D i d  y o u r  husband  e v e r  p e r f o r m  any 

( m i l i t a r y  i n t e l l i g e n c e  d u t i e s .  That i s  t o  s a y ,  1 
engagad i n  a s p i o n a g e  o r  c l a n d e s t i n e  c o u n t s r - r s v o l u -  

t i o n a r y  a c t i v i t i e s  w h i l e  ha  was i n  the m i l i t a r y ?  

A I don't know anything a b o u t  t h a t .  

Q 1 I a ~  h a  e v q r  t a l k e d  Lo you o r  t o l d  you 

a b o u t  a n y  c o u n t e r - r e v o l u t i o n a r y  a c t i v i t i e s  that hs 

may have a l l e g e d l y  performed w h i l e  in t h e  m i l i t a r y ?  

A No, but I know that he wa,s supposad to, 

Thsy  t o l d  him h e  would h a v e  t o  t u r n  i n  a n y  member .- 

of t h e  army t h a t  h e  knew that was n o t  a good x e v o l u -  

t i o n a r y ,  and he  would n o t  do t h a t ,  a n d  h e  would rathar 

resign t h a n  do t h a t ,  

Q  id h e ,  i n  fact, r e s i g n  f o r  t h a t  r e a s o  
& 

MATZ.  T R A K T M A N  & ASSOCIATES 

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS 

316 BISCAYNE BUILDING 

MIAMI. FLORIDA 
I 



A Y ~ s S  

8 Who w a s i t  t h a t  h a  r e s i g n e d  over r a t h e r  

t h a n  i n f o r m  a g a i n s t ?  

A I don't know t h a t ,  

Q D i d  ha e v a r  t e l l  you t h e  i d e n t i t y  of 

the p a r s o n  that caused h i s  r e s i g n a t i o n ?  

A No . 
Q Or prompted it? 

A N o ,  but nobody had to know who t h e  

p e r s o n  w a s  i n  h i s  departmant because h e  was i n  charge 

of o n e  department.. 

Q W A S  he i n  charge of espionage or 

c o u n t e r - r e v o l u t i o n a r y  a c t . i v i t i a s ,  if you know? 

A No. H e  was n o t  i n  charge o f  that. 

He was i n  c h a r g s  of  that depar tmsn t .  only. 

Q When d i d  he f i r s t  j o i n  the r e v o l u t i o n ,  

if you know? 

A Many y e a r s  back, 

Q Can we please h a v e  a n  app rox ima te  t i m e ?  .- 

MR. KAYEt If you remember. 

Q ( B y  M r .  Stadman) A l l  of your t e s t i m o n y  

i s  based upon your r e c o l l s c t A o n ,  

A ne was s i n c e  1 9 5 0 ,  w i t h  c h i b a s ,  
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(2 As Premier Castro swept across t h e  

island from the e a s t  end Lo the w s a t  and, where was 

h e  at the time your husband joined him? 

A A t  the tima of the revolution, ha was 

a prisoner in Havana and he was released a f t e r  t h a t .  

Q I am not talking about the culmination 

of it, but I am speaking about t h e  months and the 

great. long period of time t h a t  it took or that it was 

necessary to taka t .h t  entire island from the e a s t  end 

to the w e s t  end, coming from t h e  mountainous area 

over t-.o the flatland and I am trying to find out wharc 

the r%voluLion was when he joined it and how he joinsc 

it as captain, if he did. 

A 1re want to the mountains and than t h e y  

gave him the rank of captain. When F i d s l  came from 

Santiago, Cuba, to Havana, a f t e r  t h e  triumph of tha 

revolution, ha w a s  incarcerated in Havana. 

C! For what rdason? 

A Because ha was sent to Havana on a 
.- 

miasion and ha was arrested. 

Q By Batista's group, initially? . 

A Y e s .  

Q He was arrested by Batistams people? 

M A T Z ,  T R A K T M A N  & A S S O C I A T E S  
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A Y e s ,  

Q Did there corn6 a tima when your hus- 

band ultimately becams disenchanted with the rsvolu- 

t i o n ?  

A Mot before the triumph of the revolu- 

t i o n .  

Q After the triumph of t.ha revolution, 

did his opinion and loyalty change? 

A Yes, he did. 

Q When was that, if you know? 

A I already explained when he was in the 

health department that he was raquired to turn in 

thosm that war8 against the government and he refused 

to do so, 

8 When was it, p l e a s e ,  that he had t h i s  

change of attitude, if he did? 

A When he was in the health department. 

I do not remember the data. 

Q What. year was it, if you recall? 
.* 

- - - - - - -  - - - -Befor+- ha c a m s  over here and he cams 

here in 1965, Ha also was incarcerated thers, 

8 1 am trying to find out when his atti- 

tuda with regard to his loyalty to the revolution 
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changed, if it did. 

A It could have bean around 1960, 

Q Was it prompted and motivated by his 

reluctance or refusal to inform against parsons who 

were counter-revolutionariss or was thama some other 

reason, i f you know? 

A I only know that one that after he 

was incarcaratad. 

Q F o r  what reason? 

A Because ha was considered to be a 

counter-revolulionary, 

Q Who informed against him, if you know? 

A I don't know. 

Q Did he aver tell you of any person 

t h a t  he suspected informed against him which caused 

his incarcarat ion the s e c o n d  tima? 

A No. 

Q How long was your husband incarcerated 

the second .- p l s a s e ,  ma'am; in point of timp? 

A TWO years. 

Q Whsrt was ha incarcsralad, if you 

know, please? 

A A t  the P r i n c i p a  Cabana, 
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Q Whers is that., because I am not 

familiar with t h a t ?  

A It is in Havana. 

Q 1s it a military or a civilian prison 

or a fort or what is it? 

A I don ' t. know. 

Q flow long, in point of time, was he in 

prison at t h a t  location, p l a a s s ,  ma'am? 

A I don't know. I don't remember. I 

know t h a t  it was two years all t o g e t h e r  but I do not 

know how long in each placs. He was in the G-2, 

whcrs he spent tima. 

Q Did ha suffer a trial and, if so, was 

he convicted of counter-revolutionary activities or 

thoughts or concepts, if you know? 

A Yes .  

Q Where and when was t h e  trial? 

A I t  was in Havana but I don't remember 

the data and I was pxasant .  .* 

Q Was he in his rank of captain at that 

time of the accusation? 

A No, bscausa the last post he held was 

a civilian one. 
- -  
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Q Whan was ha stripped, if ha wasr or 

when d i d  ha resign his cornmiasion in the army as a 

captainr if you know? 

A Ha was not too long in the army. 

Q When did ha no longar hold the rank of 

captain? 

A I don't remember those dates because a t  

the time I was not married to him as yet. 

Q I am not quarreling with you, ma'am, 

but at the tima he was a civilian and when he was 

accused of this activity, specifically, what was ha 

accused of? 

A To ha against the regime of Batista. 

Q To be against the regime of Batista and 

not Castro? 

A No, you askad ma when he was arrsstud 

for t h e  first tima. 

Q I have moved on now to the second time. 

The second tima,what was he charged with as a civilian 
.* 

A To be against the regime. 

Q Of Castro? 
p p p p p p - - - - - - - -  

A Y e s .  

Q Did he suffer a trial as a result of 
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that charge? 

A Y e s ,  I already said I was prssank there 

Q Was he convictad of t h a t  offense then  

and there? 

A Yes, and ha was s e n t e n c e d .  

Q T o  what was he sentenced? 

A Twenty y e a r s .  

Q was it a specific sentence, and I do 

not mean t o  q u a r r e l  with you,  b u t  was it an indeter- 

m i n a t s  s a n t e n c a ,  l i k a  s i x  months to 2 0  years? 

A I d o n ' t  know. I d o n ' t  understand t h a t .  

Q Weore you p r e s e n t  at tho sentencing? 

A Yes. 

Q D o  you r e c a l l  if the santanca  was 2 0  

y e a r s  confinement, that i s  to say, was the 20 y e a r s  

expected  t o  be served? 

A I d o n ' t  remember. 

Q b?otwikhstanding t h e  s e n t e n c e ,  he did 

s e r v e  approximate ly  t w o  yaars, more or l a s s ?  

A Y e s ,  because w e  made some moves with 

f r i n n d s  of o u r s .  

Q Was he r e l e a s e d  early f o r  any legal 

reason? 
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A No, I don't know that. I know t h a t  h e  

was r e l e a s e d .  

Q Did you purchase his release? 

A No. He had some friends i n  t h e  reg ime 

and they h e l p e d  him out. 

8 11s was released and ha did n o t  escape? 

A No 

MR.  KAYE: The answer i s  not r e s p o n e i v ~  

to the question. 

MR. STEDMAN: I asked her, he was 

r e l a a s e d  and he d i d  not ascaps and sha statad, no, no 

meaning he did not oscapo. No, ha did not escape but 

ha was r e l e a s e d .  

That i s  what I unders tood  h e r  to  say. 

MR.  KAYE: Well, let's get it c l e a r  

for t h e  record. 

C! (By Mr. Stadman) Did he escape? 

A No. 

.* Q Was he released? 

A Y e 3 ,  he was r e l a a s a d .  

0 A f t e r  hc was released, was he psrmi t tac  
~ 

khan to leave the island of Cuba or the nation? 
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Q Row long in point of time was it after 

he was ralaaeed b e f o r e  he left the island? 

A Right away. 

Q When you s a y  right away, d o  you mean 

t h e  same day or the same weak or the same month? 

A As  soon as he took care of all of his 

papers . 
Q This ralsase was caused by or acknowlsdyed 

t o  b e  caused by friends of his within the administra- 

tion? 

A Friends and members of his family, 

brothers and people that worked with him like brother! 

Q Are any of those parsons, to your 

knowledge, in khs United S t a t e s  n o w ?  That is to say, 

the parsons who allegedly ware responsible for his 

release? 

A N o  . 
Q A f t ~ r  he was released, did ha come 

dirackly to the United S t a t e s ?  Or perhaps, did ha .- 
go to Spain or some ~ t h s r  place, as a political 

refugee has been known to go? 

A Spa in. 

Q As  far as you know, he t r a v e l e d  direct 
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From Cuba t o  Spain?  

A T o  S p a i n .  

Q Parhaps,  d i d  ha go t o  Mexico f i r s t  

or something  o f  that nature? 

A No, d i r e c t l y  t o  S p a i n .  

Q How long was he  in S p a i n ,  i f  you know, 

please, i n  p o i n t  of t ime?  

A I don't remember. 

Q D i d  you go Lo Spa in  w i t h  him? 

A No . 
Q D i d  y o u ,  at that t i m e ,  when h e  left 

to go t o  Spa in  remain i n  Cuba? 

A Yes 

Q Did any o t h e r  members of h i s  f a m i l y  

go w i t h  him to  Spain t o  your knowledge? 

A No, 

8 Did any of t h s  p e r s o n s  who caused his 

release or you b s l i c v s  ware i n s t r u m e n t a l  i n  c a u s i n g  

h i s  re laass ,  go w i t h  him t o  Spain? 

A No . 
Q What a c t i v i t i e s  d i d  your hugband - - - 

- - - - - -  - - - - - - - - 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

engage in other than what  you have told ma w h i l e  h e  

was a n a e i o n a l  of Cuba, That i s  t o  say, what other 
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organizations, e i t h e r  of tha social or political, 

did ha balong to, if you know? 

A He ussd to belong to an organization 

c a l l e d  the 2 6 t h  of July, 

Q Was that when ha was a resident hers 

in the United S t a t e s ?  

A No, that was in Cuba. 

Q Was that primarily at t h e  time he 

belonged to it, a military, political or s o c i a l  

organization or was it a combination of all three if 

you know? 

A First it just startad to b e i n g  a 

political one and than it ended up being a military 

one. 

Q A t  the time that your intended husband 

belonged Lo i t ,  which was it, in your  opinion? 

A The 26th of July? 

Q Which charactarization was ik involved 

in a t  t h e  tima, political, social or military? 

A Political, 

Q Did your husband, at any tima, hold 

any office in that organization either national or 

local? 
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A He was prasidsnt of the orthodox youth, 

0 I know what president is, but what do 

you mean by president of ths orthodox youth? 

A I cannot explain it. 

Q What did he do then as president? 

A To organize the youth so they would 

agree and cooperaka with the organization. 

Q Was that an identification procsss aucl 

as information and education or was it a propaganda 

one? 

R Propaganda. 

Q Did he pursue his office in that regarc 

a c t i v s l y  and attsmpt to fill the duties, if you know? 

A Yes, ha was vary active in it. 

Q What did he do? 

A I already told you, he organized the 

different municipalities,g~tting them togather. 

Q Which o n e  did he organize and get 

A Las Villas. 

Q Ovsr how many people was he 'prasident" 

A The whole province. It was combinad 
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into 32 municipalitiss. 

Q How many people would that be, approxi- 

mataly? 

A I don't know. 

Q Would it bs in the thousands? 

A Yas, in t h e  thousands. 

8 Parhaps 100,0003 

A I d o n ' t  th ink  t h a t  many, maybe 10,000. 

Q How long did ha hold that office and 

pursue those end%avora, in point of t i m e ?  

A It was at the beginning of the ortho- 

dox youth organization w i t h  Chibas.  

Q What does t h a t  mean? 

A He was a parson who was against t h e  

policisi of Grau, Prio and Batista. 

8 Then it was a political organization? 

A Yes  . 
9  id you belong to the groups t h a t  your 

husband headed? 

A No. 

Why not? 

to him and I did not like that. 
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Q Were you, a t  that tims, in your own 

mind considering y o u r s ~ l f  a counter-revolutionary? 

A Ma baing a counter-revolutionary, no, 

Q What objections did you have for him 

belonging to the organizations that your intended, and 

I do not maan to br flippant, that ha headed up? 

A I did not want him to be involved in 

that. My father was not agreeing with that either. 

Q Agraeing with what? 

A His activities and neither was I. 

Q Was it his activitias or ths concept 

or the and product of the activities that you or your 

father disagread with? 

A I was in disagrsaxnant with his activi- 

tias. 

Q From what time to what time? 

A Well, w e  were engaged for about ten 

years, 

Q All during that period of time, you 

were opposed to whatever political activities ha 

engaged in or social activities or military activitiet 

that ha angaged in? 

A I could not take him away from them, 
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but I disliked that. 

Q When did your husband h a v e  Spain and 

come to wherever he went than? 

A Me came over here. 

Q When was that? 

A August of 1965. 

Q Whsn did you coma to America? 

A March 1966. 

8 Did your husband arrange for your 

departure from Cuba and arrival i n  the United States 

or was that done by yourself and other parsons? 

A No, when he left he left all of the 

papers ready for ma to coma ovsr here. 

Q How long did your husband ranain in 

Spa in  before he came to the United States? 

A I t h i n k  it was six or seven months. 

Q A s  far as you know, your husband volun- 

tarily left Spa in  or waa he  deported for any alleged 

illegal activitise in Spain? 
.- 

A Ha cama voluntarily. 

Q Do you know if your husband cam8 

d i r e c t l y  t o  the  ~ r s a t e r  Miami area or d i d  he antar 

the United S k a t e s  at some other point, if you know? 
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A New York. 

Q Did he remain in that general area any 

period of tima or did ha transport himself or was 

transportation provided Lo Dade County? 

A No, ha came hers right away, 

Q From the tins that you arrived in 

Miami and ware reconciled with him, did you bring the 

children with you at that time? 

A Yas, there were two that I had then 

and than ws had two others after w e  started living 

Q Did your parents corns with you when 

you came? 

A No. I cama by myself, with the two 

children. 

Q And his perrants did not corns wfthpu? 

Q Have your parents aver arrived? 

.- A No, 

I 8 Hava his parents"'avar arrived, if you' 

1 know? 

Q Doas ha have any brothers or sistars 
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or any other next of kin othar than yourself and the 

children residing in this country at this time, if 

you know? 

A Ha had two children then. 

Q I understand g h a t ,  but what  I am say- 

ing, does ha have any other relatives, other than 

you and the childran hare? 

A No. 

Q Since he cams here, what political 

or social or civic or military organizations has ha 

belongad to, to your knowledge? 

I am not a s k i n g  if he is a democrat or 

republican or an independent, but I am trying to find 

out what  social organizations or military activities 

groups he belongs. 

A To none. 

Q Absolutely nothing, to your knowledge? 

A No, he did not belong to any organiza- 

tion. .. 

8 What kind of employment did your hus- 

band follow since he has bean here, to your knowledge; 

A l i e  was working a t  hotels and in 

construction. 
-- - - -- - - - - - 
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Q Was ha working f o r  c o n t r a c t o r s  during 

the t i m e  that h e  was working in c o n s t r u c t i o n  o r  was 

he ,  and I do n o t  mean to be flippant, b u t  was he doin: 

what w e  c a l l ,  c a t c h i n g  a break from day to day? 

A No, he worked for a c o n s t r u c t i o n  com- 

pany 

Q What was that company, i f  you know? 

A H F  worked w i t h  s s v s r a l  of them, T h e  

one t h a t  he worked with t h e  most, was Ramon. 

Q What d i d  your  husband do f o r  t h e  con- 

s t r u c t i o n  company? 

A The kind of work h e  d i d  was t o  bury 

some tubes in the ground for cons txucLion  and then 

f i l l  them with cement w i t h  c o n c r n t a .  

I d o n ' t  know what that is c a l l e d .  

Q I n  his h o t e l  work, what d i d  he do ther( 

A Wai tor ,  

Q H a m  you aver worked o u t s i d e  o f  the 

home s i n c e  .. you have been hare i n  M i a m i ?  

A No , 

Q I a p o l o g i z s  for ba ing  personal,,but wa 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

your  income, during the t . i m 6  t h a t  you r  husband was 

a l i v e ,  d e r i v e d  s o l ~ l y  from h i s  earning c a p a c i t y  at h i  
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joba? 

A Y ~ S S  

8 You had no other source of income dur- 

ing that period of Cims, to your knowledge? 

A No 0 i 

Q At that time, the children were too 

young to work gainfully smploysd? 

A Y e s .  

Q Did you own your own home prior to 

your husband's death? 

A No. 

Q You were living in rantad prsmisas? 

Q - Did your -- husband own a vehicle at the 
------- -----.---? ----- - 

time of his death? 
___ _-- _ ------ 

A No. 

Q Did you own a v ~ h i c l s  at the t i m s  of 

your husband's daath? 

A Yes, I had one. 

Q What kind of a vahicle did you have, 

please, ma'am? 

1 A A Chavrolat 1970, I thixik, but I do 
I 

1 not remember exactly t h e  year .  
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Q Was that vehicle in your name? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you own any other vehic le  o t h e r  

than t h e  one you have just related? 

A N o .  

Q bid your husband have t h e  use of a 

vehicle, p r i o r  to h i e  d e a t h ,  other than your own 

v e h i c l e ?  

A Y e s .  He was using another car, but  

d i d  n o t  belong t o  him. 

Q What t y p e  of a car was he u s i n g  than ,  

p l e a s e ?  

A It was -- I don' t  ramamber. 

Q D o  you know who, allegedly, owned that 

othsr v a h i c l s ?  

Ye8, it was a f r i e n d  of his, 

Who? 

AlbsrCo Rodriguez, 

Where does he l i v e ?  

A t  the time t h a t  your husband was using 

M A T Z .  T R A K T M A N  & A S S O C I A T E S  

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS 

31 6 BISCAYNE BUILDING 

MIAMI. FLORIDA 
I 



that c a r ,  waa M r .  Rodr iguez  l i v i n g  h e r e ?  

A No, he was i n  P u s r t o  Rico .  

Q And y o u r  husband was t a k i n g  car6 o f  

t h e  c a r  and  kaepfng it for him? 

A Yes. r 

Q O t h e r  t h a n  M r .  R o d r i g u e z ,  d i d  y o u r  

husband have  t h s  use o f  any  o t h e r  p e r s o n ' s  v e h i c l e ?  

A No, o n l y  t h a t  one .  

Q Did y o u r  husband own, a t  t h e  t i m e  of 

h i s  d e a t h ,  firearms? 

A YQS. 

Q How many f i r e a r m s  d i d  ha own o r  possese 

o r  have  custody of a t  *ha time of h i s  d e a t h ?  

A Only one.  

Q What type of f i r e a r m  was it, i f  you 

r e c a l l ?  

A A p i s t o l ,  - 4 5  caliber. 

8 Was it a r e v o l v e r  o r  a semi-automatic 

p i s t o l ?  .- 

A I t  was a p i s t o l .  The p o l i c e  impounded 

it. I t o l d  them it was in t h e  t r u n k  of t h e  c a r  and 

t h e y  took it from thexa .  

Q Was t h e  p i s t o l  t h a t  h e  had a C o l t  . 4 5  
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caliber semi-automatic pistol that has a s l i d @  that 

comes back each time t h e  pistol is fired, if you know7 

A Y e s ,  that is the one. 

Q What color was it, that is to say, was 

it bright shiny color arApcrhaps  a dark b l u e  or gray 

or a blackish color? 

A The color of the mbta1,--you rnaan? 

0 ft was not chrome-plated? 

A No. 

Q Was it nickelplated, in any way? 

A No. It was black. 

Q Was that your husband's own handgun? 

That is to say, ownod by him, if you know? 

A ft was the one that ha used a l l  of t h e  

time, He always had it or kept it in the trunk of 

ths car.  

0 When dfd ha obkain that handgun, ff 

you know? 

.- A Aftar hs was' hit with a chair, It was 

a f t e r  he was attacked with a chair and he had h i a  

forehead broken up. 

8 Do you rscall, date-wias when he 

obtained tha handgun? I underst-and your anawsr i s  
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incident-wiss, but I am t r y i n g  to  detsrmina date-wiaa. 

A If you could supply me with ths date 

t h a t  my huaband was attacked w i t h  t h e  chair, t h e n  I 

could *.all you that it was about a month aftsr t h a t ,  

but I d o  not ramambsr t h a  data.  

Q Did your husband purchase t h e  handgun 

or was it g i v e n  to him a s  a g i f t  or perhaps  loaned 

to  him by a friend on aonsignrnant o r  how did ha come 

in possassion of the gun? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

o t h e r  store? 

A 

Q 

.- A 

He bought it.  

W h ~ r a ?  

On Southwest 8th Street.  

Wera you present a t  t h a t  time? 

Yes. 

Was it in a gun store or sons sort of 

It was a store. 

Do you remember t h e  name of the place? 

It was on Southwest 8th Street, but I 
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Q At the time that your husband possessed 

the weapon, did he also possess liva ammunition for 

khs gun? 

A Y e s .  

Q Ware you ,with him when he bought the 

live ammunition? 

A Yea,  when ha bought the gun he bought 

the live ammunition. 

Q A t  t.hs same time and place? 

A Y e s  

Q Where did your husband ordinarily and 

customarily keep the pistol for safskeeping purposes, 

please, ma 'am? 

A Under the mattrsse, 

Q In the bedroom? 

A Y48 

8 Did he keep it thera only at night 

did he keep it there 24 hours a day, seven days a 

week, if you know? .- 

A Only at night when ha was at home, 

Q Whars did he kasp it in the daytime, 

if you know? 

A In the glove compartment of the car, 

MATZ. TRAKTMAN & ASSOCIATES 

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS 

316 BISCAYNE BUILDING 

MIAMI. FLORIDA 
# 



8 Which car? 

A The car  t h a t  he was d r i v i n g .  

Q Is  that your car or M r .  Rodriguez' car? 

A F i r s t  my car and t h e n  his friend's car. 

Q Whatever car  h e  was operating a t  the 

t i m e ,  he kept the weapon i n  the g l o v e  compartment of 

t h a t  car; is k h a t  correct? 

A Yes, of e i t h e r  car.  

Q Did you and he aver d i s c u s s ,  perhaps 

why he kept t h e  weapon w i t h  him in t h 8  daytime? 

A W a  talked about it and h e  claimed t h a t  

he nesdad it. 

Q Why? 

A I d i d  n o t  want him to  have t h a  gun i n  

the housa wi th  t h e  k i d s  but  ha claimed t h a t  ha neadsd 

the gun because ha used t o  t e l l  me, "Look what t h e y  

d i d  to me. I need t h e  gun Par protection." 

0 Was that th% extent of t h e  convarsa- 

t i o n  with regard t o  you and him about the gun? .- 

I occasions or more t h a n  one occasion? 

A W e l l ,  it was s e v e r a l  o c c a s i o n s .  
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Q Did  h e  transport t h e  gun from the 

car into t h e  housa every n i g h t  on his parson and than 

transport it back e v e r y  morning after removing it from 

under t h e  mattress back t o  the car? 

A Y e s .  He ,had it i n  h i s  hand. 

Q Your husband carried it back and forth 

i n  h i s  hand,as  t h e  case may be? 

A The car was parksd  right i n  t h e  grass. 

Q I understand that .  and I am not quarrel- 

ing w i t h  t h a t ,  b u t  1 want t o  know i f  your husband 

is the one that t r a n s p o r t a d  k back and f o r t h ?  

A Y e s ,  ha waa. I never touched it. 

Q Did your husband ever g o  t a r g e t  shoot- 

ing or p r a c t i c i n g  w i t h  the weapon, to  your knowledge? 

A I don 'k know. 

Q Did your husband aver bringns male 

friends to t h e  house  for s o c i a l  v i s i t 8 3  

A Yes. H e  had lots of f r i e n d s ,  

0 D i d  any of t h e  men t h a t  your husband 

brought  t o  the house  o r  invited to the home a s  g u e s t s  

c a r r y  weapons t o  your knowledge? 

A No , 

Q Did you aver sea any of t h e  m ~ c  W ~ O O V ~ ~  
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they may be, whenever it may have occurrad, if it did, 

have a weapon on that person or parhaps display it 

inadvertently or perhaps even lay it on t h e  table? 

A No. 

Q Did you ever overhear any conversation 

from any of the rnsn that your husband ever invited 

to the houss concarning their carrying waapons or 

arms of any kind? 

A No. 

Q Mhat did your husband and the men t a l k  

about when thay came to the house? 

A The political situation. 

Q What doas that mean Co ma? 

A About the Cuban political situation, 

Q Mow did your husband feel, if you know, 

and what was your husband's atkitud~ a t  the tima that 

t h e m  persons, whoever they wars, came to the house 

and t a l k e d  about political activities in Cuba? 

.. A Na was against the Castro regime, 

Q Who is he? 

A My husband. 

Q Your husband was opposed to t h a  Castro 

regime; is that correct? 
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A Yes , 

Q How about the persons that came to the 

house; were they sympathetic to your husband's viawa 

or were they opposed to your husband's views of a 

/ political nature? r 

A Some of them wars with him and soma 

were in disagreement with him, but t h e y  never fought 

about it, 

Q Physically fought? 

A No 

Q Did they verbally fight? 

A Y e s ,  they did. They argued. 

I Q Did your husband avar form or join a I 
group that was of tha same sympathetic views to his 

opinion abouC opposition to Castro hare in Miami? 

I to his friends and try to convince his frisnds that 

they are to ba in favor of his opinion about the 
.* 

situation in Cuba and about the way to fight it becaus 

1 he was of t h e  opinion that we should go to Cuba and I 
go to elections and overcame F i d a l  Castro through 

sl&cLiona and he was trying to get people to go on h i s  
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s i d e ,  and be a park of h i s  o p i n i o n ,  so far a s  that 

Q Would it be your opinion t h a t  it was 
.. -- 

your husband's opinion that t h e  best way t o  over- 
- 

throw Castro, i f  there is a bast way, would be by -- 

peaceful means? 

Q Was your husband, during this p e r i o d  

that. w e  a r e  now speaking o f ,  opposed t o  t h e  violent 

overthrow of C a s t r c  by v i o l e n t  msans, that i s  to 

say, perhaps armed invasion or asassination or other 

methods of violence as opposed to peaceful means? 

-7 

Q Did you have t h s  o c c a s i o n  to be w i t h  

your husband on  o r  in the p r e s e n c e  of your husband 

when ha suffered t h e  assault w i t h  t h e  chair? 

A No. 

Q What did your husband tell you,  if 

anything, .. with regard to t h e  assault w i t h  the chair? 

MR. KAYE: I a m  g o i n g  to object as 
~ ~ 

baing hearsay, 

THE WITNESS2 That ha was hit by a 

man that belonged t o  t h e  group of the Pragmatistas. 
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Q (By Mr. Stedman) That  was to your 

knowledge? 

A I don't know. 

Q Have  you ever heard that C s r m  before 

your husband told you about it? 

A No, but  I know that ha knew o f  it 

because ha was going to press charges for t h a t  attack. I 
Ha took newspaper clippings which shows that organiza- 

tion that they ware assigned with, the Pragmatistas. I 
Q How did your husband, i n  r e l a t i n g  to  

you, associats the attack upon him w i t h  t h e  chair w i t h  

an organization such as t h e  name you have given us, 

i f  you know? 

Bbcauss he told rns that he was a 

member of  the organization. 

Q That who was a member of the organiza- 

tion? 

T h e  o n e  that hit him w i t h  the chair. 

Did you inquire then of your husband 

A No. 

Q A t  t h a t  time, you ware not intarastad 

in what you have trrmsd as tha Pragmatistas? 
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A No, I did not know who that was. 

Q Have you learned sinca than what the 

Pragmatistas was, if that be the case? 

A Well, there ware some articles written 

i n  that small  Cuban nawspapsr about tha Pragmatistas. 

Q Did you read t h e  a r t i c l e 8 3  

A N o  . 
Q  id someone elsa rsad t h e  articles and 

recite t o  you what t h e y  a l l e g e d l y  contained? 

n 
a a I know t h a t  ha t a l k e d  about the Pragma- 

t i s t a s ,  but  I do not know a n y t h i n g  about them. 

Q Do you know if Che P r a g m a t i s t a s  are 

pro-Castro or anti-Castro? 

A I d o n ' t  know, but I fasl that t h e y  

should be i n  favor of Castro since my husband was 

against Caatro. 

8 Have you ever known any person to admit 

to you whomsvsr he or she may be, that that person was 
a 

Q Do you know the Dafandant in this Ca84, 

A No. 
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A 1  
T * 

Q Have you w a r  m e t  him i n  any capacity 

w h a t s o e v e r ,  t h a t  is t o  say, either political or 

social o r  b u s i n e s s - w i s e ?  

A No. 

Q Other t h a n  b e i n g  i n  Court and I have 

no p e r s o n a l  knowledge of t h i s ,  but h a w  you e v e r  

seen M r .  Hernandez at any o t h e r  p l a c e  o t h e r  than in 

C o u r t ?  

A No . 
Q Do you know any persons who are p u r -  

p o r t e d l y  f r i e n d s  of M r .  Hernandaz? 

A Jesus Lazo t h r e a t e n e d  m y  husband a t  a 

Grand Union SuparmarkeG a weak b e f o r e  h e  was attacked, 

9 Who is J e s u s  L a m ,  i f  you know, please? 

A I t h i n k  h a  i a  a n o t h e r  membar of t h e  

Pragmatistas. 

8 What is t h a  basis of y o u r  t h o u g h t s  that 

h a  is  a member of the P r a g m a t i a t a s ?  

A Because t h e y  ware i n  a g r o u p ,  

Q Who was i n  a group? 

A My husband used to say t h a t  the pe r son  

t h a t  attacked him, ha and Lazo and soma other whose 

name I d o  n o t  remember, were members o f  t h e  Pragmatietr 
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Ha u e s d  t o  s a y  t h a t .  

Q O t h e r  than your husband s a y i n g  t h a t ,  ie 

that t h a  only s o u r c e  of your  i n f o r m a t i o n  and conclu- 

s i o n ?  

A N o ,  b u t  1,know t h a t  h e  used to show 

t h e  clippings of t h e  newspaper  o r  mention the Pragma- 

t i s t a s  t o  some o f  h i s  f r i e n d s .  

Q who would used t o  show the c l i p p i n g s ?  

A M y  husband showed it t o  h i s  friends. 

Q Other t h a n  your husband, what  is y o u r  

o t h a r  source o f  i n f o r m a t i o n ?  

A Of information c o n c e r n i n g  the Pragma- .  

tistas? 

Q Y e s ,  and especially the p e r s o n  who 

allegedly t h r e a t e n e d  your  husband i n  Grand Union. 

A I don't remambsr t h e  name. I c a n n o t  

recall khb name. 

Q I am s p e a k i n g  of t h e  s o u r c e ,  not t h e  

i d e n t i t y .  .- 

A I don't remember. 
- - - - - - - -  ~ 

- - - - -  - R  - - f a* apedking -of t h ~  s o u r c e  of y o u r  

i n f o r m a t i o n  o t h e r  t h a n  y o u r  husband. 

A No, I had  no  o t h e r  i n f o r m a t i o n .  I was 
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a t  horns t a k i n g  c a r e  of my k i d s ,  

Q Haven ' t  you r e c e i v e d  i n f o r m a t i o n  from 

your f r i e n d s  and acqua in t ances  and 

husband? 

A No J 

c o m p a t r i o t s  

Q No one o t h e r  than your husbanl d has 

g iven  you t h e  i n fo rma t ion  concern ing  t h e  a l l e g e d  

Pragmat i skas?  

A I usad t o  hear him t a l k i n g  t o  h i s  

f r i e n d s  about it. 

Q I a m  speaking that your source of 

i n f o r m a t i o n  was d e r i v e d  s o l e l y  from your husband? 

A Yss,  o n l y  from my husband. 

CI And his c o n v e r s a t i o n  d i r e c t l y  w i t h  you 

o r  overheard  t a l k i n g  t o  o t h a r  parsons? 

A He d i d  n o t  t a l k  p o l i t i c s  with ma. I t  

was c o n v e r s a t i o n  I overheard  with h i s  f r i a n d s .  

Q Didn't your  husband t a l l  you t h a t  Jesua 

had thragtaned him i n  the Grand Union s t o r e ?  

A N o ,  h e  d i d  not t a l l  m a  t h a t  because -- 
but I heard it. 

- - - - - - - - - Q - - W h e r e  w a r a  you whan you hea rd  it? 

A Ma w e r e  just buying some merchandise  
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there. 

Q What did you haar Jesus say? 

A That he wae going to kill him, 

are really going t o  kill you." 

Q What. ware the words again? 

A "Now w s  are really going to  kill you." 

Q Were those words spoken without any 

other preamble, just those plain words? 

A No, they o f f e n d e d  each other. 

Q How did they o f f e n d  each other? 

A 

each other. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

are going to 

Q 

A 

They used soma profane language toward 

What profane language? 

That ha was a son of a bitch. 

Who was the Bon of a bitch? 

My husband and than h e  says,  "Now w e  

really kill you.' 

askad him, "What do you want to do. Do you want t o  

Who called who a son of a bitch first? 

Lazo t o  my husband and then my hcsband 

And t h e n  he says,  "No, 1 don't want t o  

fight you because you are armed," and t h a n  he  opened 
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h i s  c o a t .  

Q Who opened h i s  coat? 

A My husband t o l d  Jesus Lazo, "Let's have 

a fight. You want t o  f i g h t  me," and than J e s u s  Lazo 

told him, 9+?0, bbcause YOU are armsd." 

Then my husband opened his coat and 

s a i d ,  "I  am n o t  armed. Look, I am n o t  armad. Let's 

g o  up F l a g l e r , "  and than w e  want behind the Grand 

Union store and they d i d  n o t  f i g h t ,  

Q D i d  you go out and obaervs what 

happened behind the Grand Union store? 

A Then my husband, ha asked  around the 

Grand Union store who t h a t  man wae and he was working 

thema, just s e t t i n g  up soma b o t t l e s  i n  t h e  Grand 

Union. Then he was told that. ha was an employee of 

Canada Dry that was there working. R e  was wi th  

another  person ,  L a m  was w i t h  another person ,  

Q Did you go o u t  back t o  sea what happan4 

if anything? 

A N o .  

Q Ilow l o n g  was your husband o u t  there?  

A Lazo and h i s  friend left and then  m y  

husband remained there t r y i n g  to invsstigats w i t h  the 
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employer  o f  Grand Union who t h a t  man was t h a t  had 

threatened him. 

Q D i d  your  husband l e a v e  the s t o r e  and 

allegedly go o u t  back b e f o r e  Jeeus Lazo left? 

A N o ,  

Q Ware you f n  t h e  prr~ence of you r  Rus- 

band at a l l  times a t  *ha a t o r e ?  

A Yes. I d i d  not let him go t o  t h e  back 

of the s t o r e ,  I was w i t h  h i m  a l l  of t h e  t i m e ,  

Q How long i n  p o i n t  of t i m e  d i d  tha Grand 

Union i n c i d e n t  c o n ~ u m e ?  

A A few minutes  o n l y .  

8 Did the o t h e r  p e r s o n  t h a t  was w i t h  

J s m s  e n t e r  i n t o  any of the c o n v s r s a t f o n s  o r  a c t i o n s ?  

A Yes,  he  a rgued  w i t h  my husband. 

Q What d i d  t h e  o t h e r  man s ay?  

A I t h i n k  t h a t  he was santsncad.  I do  

n o t  ramambar what h e  said but they had some argument .  

Q D i d  you e v e r  d e t e r m i n e  o r  d i d  you r  own 
.- 

husband a v e r  d s t s r m i n e  t h e  i d e n t i t y  o f  the o t h e r  man 

okhar t h a n  Jesus Lazo? 

A Yes,  my husband found out who ha waa.  

Q Who was he? 
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A I don't know his name but I think that 

he was already sentenced. 

Q 

A 

0 

Jesus? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

conspiracy? 

A 

Here? 

I think so. 

The other man w e  are talking about, not 
d 

Yes, because they were in conspiracy. 

What do you basa t h a t  conclusion on? 

Ma was sentencad. 

No, the conclusion that they were in 

Because there wae a trial and there wae 

some evidence that related to the conspiracy to ki l -1  

my husband. 

Q The other person that was in thie 

Grand Union store with Jssus has bean sentenced in 

the Courts locally for conspiracy to kill your husbani 

A . Yes. I do not know the detail6 very 

well, but I know two persons were sentenced for that, 

Q Are you positive that the other person 

that was in the store with Jssue helping Jesus put up 
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the bottles for Canada Dry, whoever it was, is the 

on8 and Lhs same person that has been previously 

sentenced for conspiracy? 

A I am not sura because I do not know 

his name. 

Q Were you present at t h e  conspiracy 

sentencing previously had? 

A No. 

Q Have you bssn in attendance at any 

previous trials with ragard to this case? 

A No, X was not summoned. 

Q Did you appaar as a spectator and sit 

in the audience, perhaps, or walk around the halls? 

A No , 

Q Has anyone provided you with any 

photographs of any of the individuals involved in thi 

case? 

A I saw them in t h e  paper. 

.- Q I am speaking of any law enforcement 

agency or prosacutors giving you photographs of people 

- - - - - - - - 

f OX y 6 U  t 0  view-? 

A No, I have seen them only in television 

and papers, 
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4 %  

Q Have you saved tha newapapars that 

c o n t a i n e d  those photographe or a r t i c l e s  or the c l i p p -  

ings from the papers? 

A No. 

8 Have you appearad a s  a witness and 

testified i n  ragard to  your husbandla d e a t h  in dny 

proceading p r e v i o u s  to today? 

A The other day X was h e r s ,  f had a 

fever and I had Lo l s a v s .  
r .. 

Q nave you testified, that i s  t o  say, 

given testimony anywhere elsa? 

A No 

Q Have you ever g i v e n  t h e  policr a state-  

ment w i t h  regard t o  this case? 

A TO the pol ice  officer, I d i d ,  and h e  

was k i l l e d  t h a t  day. 

Q Rave you ever given t h e  police a ata te -  

msnt with regard to  t h i s  c a s e ?  

.- 
A Yes,  whan h e ~  was killed, when I was 

i n t e r r o g a t e d .  

husband suffered his death? 

A Yes. 
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- - 

8 Was it a t  the p o l i c e  s t a t i o n ?  

A No, t h e  h o s p i t a l  where X had m y  boy. 

Q Wan it q u e s t i o n  and answer form? 

A I answered whatavsr I c o u l d  answer 

because I was n o t  f s ~ l i n g  w e l l  at a l l  a t  that t i m s .  

Q I extend my sympa th i e s  to you and I 

am n o t  t r y i n g  t o  have you suffer any h a r e  t oday .  I t  

i s  n o t  m y  i n t a n t i o n  t o  h u r t  you o r  harm you i n  any  

way wha t sosvar .  

A Thank you v e r y  much. 

Q B u t  I do n o t  want t o  cause you any 

g r i e f  o r  tragedy, but I s t i l l  have t o  do  my j o b  and 

the o n l y  way t o  do it i s  to ask the q u e s t i o n s .  I w i l l  

n o t  d w e l l  on your  p e r s o n a l  problems o r  t r a g e d i e s  i n  

any way whalsoaver .  

Did t h s  police ask you q u e s t i o n s  and 

write down your  answers  if you know? 

A I do n o t  rsmamber. 

.- Q D i d  the p o l i c e  a s k  you t o  sign any 

papers a t  the scene o f  t h e  tragedy? 

A No. 

Q Have the p o l i c e  aver asked you to come 

to the police s t a t i o n  and give a s ta tement  or t a l k  wit 
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them i n  t h s  preeance of a Cour t  R e p o r t e r ,  such  a6 a 

PQraon w i t h  a l i t t l e  machine as w e  havs  h e r e  t oday?  

A No. 

Q Have you aver appeared  i n  the O f f i c e  

I of t h e  Statcs A t to rney ,  that i s ,  i n  M r .  Kaya'a o f f i c e l  

and g i v e n  a s t a t e m e n t  u n d e r  o a t h  t o  an A s s i s t a n t  

( S t a t e  At to rney ,  n o t  n a c e s s a r i l y  M r .  Kaye pe rhaps  b u t  

someone else? 

A *No. I asked t o  t a l k  Lo t h a  ~seistant - 

I Q Was your  r e q u e s t  g r a n t e d ?  

A N o ,  t h e y  asked ma f o r  my t e l e p h o n s  

I number. They t o l d  me t h a t  they would c a l l  me and 

( ha never d i d .  

Q Who d i d  you ask t o  speak t o  whan ypu, 

/ called ths S t a t e  A t to rney?  

Just f o r  the S t a t a  A t t o r n e y ,  
J 

You mean t h e  S t a t s  A t t o r n e y ,  R ichard  . 

A I don't know. I d i d  n o t  know who I 

wanted to talk to but I wanted to t a l k  t o  t h e  

A s s i s t a n t  S t a t e  Attorney that was i n  c h a r g e  of t h i s  

MATZ. TRAKTMAN & ASSOCIATES 

CERTIFIED SHORTHAND REPORTERS 

316 BISCAYNE BUILDING 

MIAMI. FLORIDA 



0 Ware you auccsssful in that endeavor? 

I___ 

Q -Have you ever talked with an Assistant 

State Attornsy with regard to this c a m  that you 

'ii 
MR. KAYE: She talksd t o  ma. A 

Q (By Mr. Stadman) ' Have you talked to 

Mr. Kaye? 

A .Yea, that day I came over hsra befora. 

Q At the tims that you talked t o  Mr. 

Robert Kays, who I will tell you is an sxcsllmnt 

Assistant State Attornsy, did huh taka your statemant 

with,a Court Reporter being present? 

A No. 

Q Has Mr. Kays or any person in th8 

State Attornay's Office asked you to write out your 

statement on a piece of paper, sign it and give that 

pibca of paper to them? .- 

A No 0 

Q What was it that you wanted to.epsak 

with the Assistant S t a t e  Attorney or whoever was in 

charge of tha case about? 
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A I wanted t o  f i n d  o u t  how th+y were 

g o i n g  t o  p r o c ~ e d  w i t h  t h e  t r i a l .  

Q Did you h a v e  any  s p e c i f i c s  o r  u n i q u a  

i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  you b e l i a v s d  t h a t  you wanted t o  

i m p a r t  t o  t h e  S t a t e ?  

A , I  wanted t o  t a l l  him t h a t  t h e r e  wae a  

w i t n a 8 s  t o  t h e  i n c i d e n t .  

Q Were you u l t i m a t e l y  s u c c s s s f u l  i n  

t e l l i n g  M r .  Kaye o r  s o m ~  o t h a r  p e r s o n  t h a t ?  

A Yes,  t h e n  h e  t o l d  m a  t h a t  it i s  r i g h t  
j__ 

h a r e  on t h e  l i s t .  

Q What w i t n e s s  d i d  you wan t  t o  a d v i s e , ,  

M r .  Kay@ a b o u t ?  - - 

A A g i r l  +.hat  happened t o  p a s s  by t h e  ,. 

h o s p i t a l  a t  t h e  moment o f  t h e  i n c i d a n t .  

Q I!ow d i d  you f i n d  o u t  a b o u t  t h a t  c h i l d ?  

A From the v e r y  f i r s t  moment I found o u t  

t h e r e  was a w i t n e s s  t o  t h e  i n c i d e n t .  

.- 
8 Who b t o l d  you t h a w  

The P o l i c e  O f f i c e r s  t h e m s e l v e s  t o l d  , 

me and soma o t h a r  person b e c a u s e  t h s y  p u t  t h e  name,  

down. 

Q .  Did anyone  w a r  t e l l  you t h a t  t h e r e  
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was an identification witness to this tragedy? 

A Yee, I was t o l d  that this child 
t 

happened to pass by a t  the time of the incidrnt and 

they took her name and everything. 

0 Wera you aver told that thera was an 

identification witness? 

A I quess that if she saw it, sha could 

identify who it was. 

Q 18 that your guaes or did anyone tell 

you that? 

A Y e s ,  I g u m s  if a person sass somathin( 

going on that she could identify t rson who did i< - .t 

Q I appraciats your assumption, but I 

want to find out if anyone told you that there was 

an idsnti f ication witness. 

A I was told a girl paasad by-at that 

moment. 

MR. KAYE: We will raisr an objsction 

at this point, bacauss the quastion has been asked .- 

and answered. 

MR. STEDMAN: Don't answer itol 

Q (By Mr. Stddman) Have you mads any 

indspendsnt investigation with regard to this cas8 on 
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A No. 

Q Hava you qone out and phyeically 

attemptad to converse or meat with any of th8 proapsc 

tivs State's witnessas with regard to this case? 

A No. 

Q Rava you sent anybody or had anybody 

on your behalf, to your knowladge, gone out and maka 

any field investigation or attempt any interrogation 

of any persons? -- - 

A No. 

Q Nave you hired or retained tha service - 
of any pfivats investigator or detective or any okher 

parson of such caliber to do any endeavors on your 

behalf? 

A No. 

Q ,Are you aware, if you are, of any 

parson -- who is'attempting to intsrrogate or'invsstigat 

the Pragmatistaa with the exception of the police 
.a - 

MR. KAYE: I am going to object to 

that. ~on't answer the question because it may vary 

well involva -- 
-- .- 
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MR. STEDMANt With t h e  e x c e p t i o n  of 

t h e  p o l i c e  a g e n c i e s .  

MR. KAYE: S h e  may n o t  ba f u l l y  aware  - - 

of t h e  d i f f a r e n c a  o f  a p o l i c e  agency and a p e r s o n a l *  

i n v e s t i g a t o r .  - 

MR. STEDMAN: I w o n ' t  a r g u e  w i t h  you. 

C e r t i f y  t h e  q u e s t i o n .  

I have  asked a q u e s t i o n  and t h e  

A s s i s t a n t  S t a t e  A t t o r n e y  h a s  objectad t o  it and t o l d  

t h e  witness n o t  t o  answer  t h e  q u a s t i o n .  W e  are g o i n g  

t o  c e r t i f y  it to t h e  Judge f o r  an  answer. I f  t h e  

Judge r u l e s  that my q u e s t i o n  i s  p r o p e r  t h e n  s h e  c a n  

answer  it a t  a l a t e r  date. 

I f  the J u d g a  r u l e s  that my q u e s t i o n  

i s  improper ,  she w i l l  n a v s r  have  to antawsr the quaa- 

t i o n .  

M r .  O s o r i o ,  p l s a s s  t e l l  h r r  t h a t .  

(Thereupon,  tha I N t a r p r s t e r  

.- c o m p l i e s ,  i n  S p a n i s h . )  

MR, STEDMANP The q u s s e i o n  h a s  baen 
p p p p p p p p p p - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

h s k % d p a n d  %ha o b j e c t i o n  i s  mad. and t h e  reaord is  

t h a r e  for t h e  J u d g e ,  

Q ( B y  M r ,  Stedman) On t h a  day t h a t  your  
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husband m e t  h i s  demise ,  what  was h i s  r a a s o n  o r  purposr 

f o r  go ing  t o  V a r i e t y  C h i l d r a n ' s  H o s p i t a l ,  i f  you know; 

A We had one o f  o u r  sons t h e r e  who was 

g r a v e l y  ill. 

Q Was t h a t , c h i l d ,  a t  t h a t  tima, c o n f i n e d  

t o  V a r i e t y  C h i l d r e n ' s  H o s p i t a l ?  

A Y S S .  

Q How long ,  i n  p o i n t  o f  t i m e ,  had your  

c h i l d  been i n  t h +  h o s p i t a l  as o f  t h a t  u n f o r u n a t b  

day?  

A Ws t o o k  him f o r  t h r e e  days i n  a row 

b e f o r e  t h a t  and t h e n  t h a t  day  t h ~ y  d e c i d e d  t h a t  h e  

s h o u l d  remain  i n  t h a  h o s p i t a l .  

Q By t h a t ,  you mean t h a t  h e  had bean 

t h s r s  t h r e a  days p r e v i o u s l y  a s  a n  o u t - p a t i s n t ?  

A Y e s ,  as  an  o u t - p a t i e n t  b u t  t h a t  day 

t h e  Doc to r  d e c i d e d  t h a t  ha ahou ld  remain  t h e r e .  

Q A s  a r e s i d e n t  p a t i e n t ?  

0 What t i m e  o f  day d i d  you t a k a  your  

aon on t h e  f o u r t h  day whan . t i t  was d e c i d e d  that: ha 

~ s h o u l d  ramain  t h s r s ?  

I A I t o o k  him f i r s t  a b o u t  8:30 i n  t h a  
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morning and t h a n  my husband want t h a r e .  

Q You d r i v e  and o p s r a t o  a v e h i c l e  your-  

s e l f ?  

A Yes. 

Q Did you h a v e  your  c h i l d  there and you 
I 

d s p a r t  t h s  h o s p i t a l ?  : 

A No. I remainad t h a r a .  

Q Were you t h e r e  a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  y o u r  

h u ~ b a n d  mat h i s  d e a t h ?  

A Yas, b u t  t h e y  d i d  n o t  a l l o w  ms t o  go 

o u t  t h a r e .  

Q But  you ware p h y s i c a l l y  t h a r a  at t h a t  

t i m e ?  

A Yaa. 

Q Did you and your  husband go  t o  t h e  

h o s p i t a l  t o g e t h e r  or  d i d  y o u r  husband come s s p a r a t s  

and  a p a r t  from you? 

A He came by h i m s e l f .  

Q D o  you know i f  y o u r  husband b r o u g h t  

any  o t h e r  p e r s o n  w i t h  him a t  t h a t  t i m e  and p l a c e ?  

A No one.  H e  was by h i m s a l f .  

Q Uad y o u r  husband bean i n  t o  s r 8  t h e  

c h i l d  and was h e  l e a v i n g  t h e  h o s p i t a l  a t  tha time t h a l  
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h e  m e t  h i s  demise?  

A Yes. 

Q Approximate ly  what  hour  o f  t h a  d a y  was 

it, i f  you r e c a l l  w i t h o u t  b e a r i n g  t.oo h e a v i l y  upon 

it? 

A One o ' c l o c k .  

Q Do you know i f  y o u r  husband had h i s  

weapon w i t h  him a t  t h a t  t i m s ?  

A N o .  He had it i n  t h e  t r u n k  of t h e  

c a r .  

THE INTERPRETER: Somatimes s h s  means 

m a l e t e r o ,  which means t r u n k ,  and soms t imss  t h a  g l o v a  

compartment .  

MR. STEDMAN: W e l l ,  w e  p u t  it i n  t h e  

r e c o r d  t h a t  t h e  word h a s  a c o n v a r t i b l s  t e r m ,  it h a s  

a d o u b l e  i n t e r p r e t a t i o n .  ft c o u l d  be i n t e r p r e t e r  a s  

the t r u n k  o f  t h ~  c a r .  

THE INTERPRETER: S o m 8 t i m ~ s  s h e  s a y s  

m a l s t s r o ,  which is  t h e  t r u n k  o f  t h e  c a r  and  sometimes 

s h e  s a y s  comparLimsnto g u a n t ~ ,  which means g l o v e  

compartmsnt .  

Q (By M r .  S tsdman) On t h e  d a y  t h a t  y o u r  

husband m e t  h i s  death,  whare d i d  h e  h a v a  t h e  gun,  i f  
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you know? 

A I a l r e a d y  rnantioned t o  you t h a t  it was 

i n  t h e  g l o v e  compartmant,  

Q Was t h a t  g l o v r  conpar tmant  o f  t h e  

v r h i c l a  t h a t  h e  was o p e r a t i n g  on t h a t  day,  t h e  t y p e  

t h a t  h a s  a l o c k  on it? 

A Y e s ,  and h e  had a key,  

Q A l o c k  and a key? 

A Y s s  

Q Did t h a  l o c k  and key o p e r a t e  and func-  

t i o n  p r o p e r l y  to your  knowlsdge? 

A Y e s  

Q Was tha gun,  t o  your  knowledgs, k e p t  

l oadad  i n  t h e  g l o v a  compartmsnt locked?  

A Yes,  it was loaded .  

MR, KAYE: T h a t  i s  a two- fo ld  q u e s t i o n  

8 (By M r ,  Stsdman) Who was it t h a t  f i r s  

t o l d  you t ha t .  your  husband was t h a  v i c t i m ,  i f  you 

r e c a l l ?  .- 

A I was n e x t  t o  my son ,  who was i n  a 

a t r s t c h e r ,  He was go ing  t o  be t a k e n  u p s t a i r s ,  Than 

a n u r s a  cam@ o v e r  and took m a  t o  some o t h a r  room, and 

t h i s  w a s  a n u r s a  t h a t  I know, bacause  I a lwaye t a k e  
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my k i d s  t h a r s  and t h a n  s h e  t o l d  me, "Your husband 

had an  a c c i d e n t . "  

I wantad h e r  t o  t a l l  me what was t h e  

a c c i d e n t .  I t h o u g h t  it was a c a r  a c c i d a n t .  Thsn 

t h s y  t ook  m e  t o  soma o t h e r  room and t h e y  t o l d  m e  Chat  

t h e y  cou ld  n o t  a l l o w  me t o  get o u t ,  t h a t  l a t e r  on 

t h e y  would a l l o w  me t o  go o u t ,  because  t h e y  wars 

w a i t i n g  f o r  t h e  ambulanoa, 

I t h o u g h t  t h a t  he  had a car a c c i d e n t  

when ha waa going  o u t s i d a  o f  t h e  h o s p i t a l ,  Thsn, 

f i n a l l y ,  a n o t h e r  g i r l  t h a t  I know t h a t  works t h e r e  

t o l d  me f i n a l l y ,  "Your husband was s h o t .  Somabody 

s h o t  him and ha is  ve ry  g r a v a l y  i l l . "  

Then I i n s i s t e d  f o r  them t o  l e t  ma 

o u t  beoausa t h e y  would n o t  a l l o w  me t o  go o u t .  Na i the  

would t h e y  a l l o w  me t o  go t o  my c h i l d ,  I wantad tham 

t o  8 i t h e r  1 r L  me go o u t  o r  be w i t h  my c h i l d ,  They 

t o l d  me t h a t  my c h i l d  w a s  be ing  t a k e n  c a r a  of p r o p r r l  

a l r e a d y ,  .- and f o r  me, i f  I cou ld  c a l l  eoms f r i e n d  o r  

some r m l a t i v a ,  ao t h a t  t h e y  cou ld  come o v e r  and keep 

m e  company. 

Q A l l  o f  t h i a  waa done by h o s p i t a l  par- 

s o n n e l ,  n o t  p o l i a s ?  
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A Y e s ,  My mind was j u s t  a  b l a n k ,  I 

c o u l d  n o t  ramsmbsr a n y t h i n g ,  I c o u l d  n o t  remember my 

t e l e p h o n e  numbsr o r  a n y t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t ,  Thoy a s k e d  

m e  i f  it would b e  a l l  r i g h t  i f  I would Peal b e t t e r  i f  

t h e y  b r o u g h t  t h e  o t h e r  k i d s  t o  ma and I s a i d ,  y a a ,  an4 

they d i d ,  

Then t h e  p o l i c e  came o v a r  to ask rns 

q u e s t i o n s .  They g a v e  me some p i l l s  f o r  my n e r v e s  i n  

t h b  i n t e r i m .  Than t h e  p o l i c e  came o v e r  t o  ask ma 

quest tbns . - ,and khan I t o l d  h i m  w h a t w a r  I knew, wha teve  

I c o u l d  answer a t  t h a t  t i m e  b s a a u s a  I was f e e l i n g  v a r  

bad, 

Q I have  h e r e  a l i s t  o f  1 6  q u e s t i o n s  

w r i t t e n  i n  S p a n i a h ,  S i n c s  I d o n ' t  r e a d  S p a n i s h ,  I a m  

g o i n g  t o  h a v e  M r .  O s o r i o  i n  ths p r e s e n c e  o f  M r .  Kays 

r e a d  t h a  q u a & k i o n s  f i r s t  i n  E n g l i s h  f o r  t h s ' c o u r t  

R e p o r t e r ,  Then I w i l l  h a v e  him t r a n s l a t b  o r  t o  p u t  

it o t h e r w i s a ,  r e a d  the q u e s t i o n  t o  you i n  S p a n i s h  and 

t h e n  y o u - g i v e  him y o u r  answer  i n  S p a n i s h ,  i f  you c a n ,  

and  ha  w i l l  t r a n s l a t e  your  answer  t h e n  i n t o  E n g l i s h  

f o r  t h e  r s c o r d ,  

M r .  O s o r i o ,  h a r e  i s  t h e  l is t , ,  Go o n e  

by o n e ,  
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( T h e r e  f o l l o w i n g  q u s a t i o n s  wars 

posed  t o  t h e  w i t n e b s  by t h e  

I n t e r p r a t e r  f rom t h s  r e f e r r e d  

t o  l i a t  as r e q u e s t e d  by c o u n s u l . )  

Q (By T h e  I n t e r p r e t e r )  Number o n e ,  i f  

y o u r  husband t o l d  you why L e s n i c k  was oppossd  t o  w i t h -  -- 

draw t h e  c h a r g e s  a g a i n s t  m e ?  

MR. STEDMANI Read tha q u a s t i o n .  Don'l 

get i n t o  a d i s c u s s i o n  and t a l l  h e r  t o  answer  it i f  

s h s  can. 

MR. BARONE: E x p l a i n  t h a t  t h s s a  are 

q u e s t i o n s  t h a t  havs been posed  by M r .  Harnandsz i n  

S p a n i s h  to t h e  benefit t o  ask Chs lady .  

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  know a n y t h i n g  

a b o u t  t h a t .  

Q ( B y  The I n t e r p r e t a r )  Number two* The 

husband s a i d  * h a t  L e s n i c k  was t h e  ona who had t o  takc 

_cars o f  h i s  problem s i n c e  h e  waa Lhs o n e  t h a t  knew 

a l o t  o f  p e r s o n s  t h a t  had a l o t  of i n f l u e n c e  i n  the- 

j u d i c i a l  syst+m. 

q u e s t i o n ,  unless t h e r e  f a  a q u e s t i o n .  

MR. STEDMAN: I f  she - u n d e r s t a n d s  it, 
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s h e  can  answer  it. 

(Thereupon,  t h e  l a s t  p snd ing  

q u e s t i o n  waa r e a d  back by the 

I n t a r p r a t e r ,  a e  above r e c o r d e d , )  

M r ,  KAYB: Aak  h s r  i f  a h e  u n d e r s t a n d s  
4 

t h 8  q u a a t i o n ,  

THE WITNESS2 Wall, a l l  I know i s  t h a t  

a f t e r  h e  was h i t  w i t h  the c h a i r  savaral f r i e n d s  o f  

h i e  came over t o  ask h i m  t o  wi thdraw t h e  c h a r g e s .  

MR, BARONE: S a v b r a l  f r i s n d s  o f  h i s ,  

t h a t  means n o t h i n g  to u s ,  Don't use " h i s a ' a n d  " t hey"  

and  " t h ~ r n ~ .  T e l l  u s  who t h e y  are ,  
* . .  

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  know who t h s y  

a .  I o n l y  know t h a y  came. 

MR, KAYE: Whom f r i e n d s ?  

THE WXTNESSz My husband's f r i e n d s .  

Q (By The ~ n t e r p r s t e r )  Who ware t h o s e  

pe r son8  t h a t  your  husband i a  r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

MR, BARONE: T h a t  would b s v f n  refer- 
.- 

anca to tha p a o p l e  t h a t  were p e r s o n a  o f  i n f h m n c e  

and f r i s n d s  o f  &asnick i n  + h a  j u d i c i a l  powlrrr. - 

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  know a n y t h i n g  

about t h a t .  
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Q ( B y  The I n t e r p r e t e r )  Number f o u r .  

Why M r .  L s sn i ck  g o t  ang ry  when s i n c e  t h e  b u s i n e s s  o f -  

t h e , d e a l i n g  of Jorgs Gonealez Bombil.10 called him 

t o  .~t+ll him he  d i d  n o t  want  t o  c h a r g a  m e ,  t o  accuse 

A I d o n ' t  know a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  t h a t .  

Q (By The I n t e r p r e t e r )  Number f i v e .  Why 

Lesn i ck  wanted me t o  us@ t h e  document f o r c i n g  me LO 

s i g n  it and your  husband did not want m e  to do t h a t ?  

A I don't know a n y t h i n g  a b o u t  t h a t .  

Q ( B y  The I n t e r p r e t e r )  Number six. When 

. you ( r e f e r r i n g  t o  M r s .  N iaves )  t o o k  tha l a t t e r6  t o  

t h a  post o f f i c e  of C o r a l  Gablas, letters t h a t  w a r s  

a d d r e s s e d  t o  M r .  McGovern, t h o s e  lattsrs Lasn i ck  was 

forc i*ng you t o  t a k e  thsm o v e r  or h e  was t h e  o n e  who 

wanted you to do  t h a t ?  

A I took  latter8 from my f a m i l y  t o  t h e  

post o f f i c e  and n s v a r  d i d  take any  letters t o  any 

p o l i t i c i a n s ,  McGovarn or a n y t h i n g  l i k e  t h a t .  
.* 

Q (By Tha I n t e r p r a t e r )  Nurnbsr s avsn .  

H - p u r h - u a b a n d  w r o t e  letters to Frank  Chavaz and 

Maikol  H a r r i n g t o n ?  

A I d o n ' t  know any o f  t h o 8 4  nam+s. 
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0 (By Thm Intsrprstar) Numbar eight. 

Since ha did not write English, if'ha wrote those 

lattsrs by order of Mr. Lusnick? 

A No, I don't know what letters that 

they are referring to. 

Q (By The Interpreter) Number nine. 

Those letters that wars written by l as nick or his 

sscretariss? 

A I don't know anything about that. 

0 (By The Intarprater) Number tan. How 

many times he took a trip to Montsgo Bay, Jamaica? 

It was more than two occasiona. 

MR. BARONE: Making reference to Mr. 

Niavea. 

THE WITNESS: Only once. 

Q (By Ths Intarprater) Number 11. How 

many trips he took to Panama? 

A . Nsvsr. 

0 (By Tha Interpreter) Number 12. Ha 
... 

m a t  in Montsgo Bay, Jamaica, hie brother and with 

Tomae Tomasevich. 

A Not that I know of. 

0 (By The Interpreter) Number '13. How 
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many trips did he take to Cuba? 

Q (By The Interpreter) Numb8r 14, What 

wae the relationship bbtwesn him and R, Donastevez? 

A None, I never saw him, 

Q (By The Interpreter) Number 1% When 

~ e s n i c k  aunt him to thosa placas ha always gave him 

soma money? 

A Not that I know of, 

0 (By T h e  Interpreter) Number 16, The - 
money that Lasnick qave him was on the basis of a 

payment for a loan or a payment for his work? - 

A H~:.nsvur gave him any money. Only he 

paid part of Lhs funeral expenses, 

(Thuraupon, the reading of *ha 

question from the list by the 

Interpreter was concludad,) 

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued) 

Q When you say he paid for the funeral, 

part of the funeral expenses, who are you talking 

about? 
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Q How much, i f  you know? 

A P a r t  o f  ths f u n e r a l  axpensea, I d o n ' t  

know how much was p a i d  b u t  it was p a i d  betwsan two 

o r  t h r e e  f r i a n d s ,  

MR, STEDMAN~ I have no f u r t h e r  ques- 
a 

t i o n s ,  

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Cont inued)  

BY MR. BARONE: 

Q Mrs, Nisvss ,  what does  your  fo rmal  

e d u c a t i o n  c o n s i s t  o f ?  

A I have v e r y  l i t t l e  e d u c a t i o n ,  n o t  v a r y  

much, 

Q How f a r  d i d  you go i n  s c h o o l ?  

A The e i g h t h  g rade ,  b u t  I took some 

s s c r e t t a r i a l  t r a i n i n g ,  a d u c a t i o n  c o u r s e s ,  I was 

educa t ed  i n  a  nun ' s  c o n v e n t , -  

Q It I s  my unde r s t and ing  t h a t  a l l  o f  you 

f ami ly ,  o t h e r  t h a n  your  c h i l d r e n ,  are st i l l  i n  Cuba; 

i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  
.- 

MR. KAYEt The q u e s t i o n  h a s  bean 

aaked and answerad. 

- - - - - - -  

- - - - - - - - - - -  

- THE W13NpESS: Y 3 8 .  

Q ( B y  Mr, Barona) Is that the same w i t h  
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your  husband? 

MR. KAYE: I ob jec t , '  The  q u e s t i o n  h a s  

been, a sked  and anewsrcrd. 

THE WITNESSo YOa. 

0 (By M r .  Barons)  Is any rnembar of 

o i t h a r  f a m i l y  i n  j a i l  i n  Cuba? 

Q -Did your  husband a v e r  work f o r  Max 

Leenick?  

Q What a b o u t  t h e  art icles t h a t  a p p e a r s d  

i n  M r .  L e s n i c k ' s  paprr;  who w r o t e  t h o s s ?  

A I t  was w r i t t e n  r i g h t  t h e r e  a t  t h e  

m a g a z i n ~  o f f i c e ,  h r  and my husband was i n t s r r o g a t s d  

i n  f r o n t  o f  some t a p e  r e c o r d i n g  machinas and t h i n g s  

1 i k r . t h a t .  They a sked  him q u e s t i o n s :  

Q Did your  husband e v e r  r a c s i v e  any  mone 

f o r  t h o s 8  art icles t h a t  appeared  i n  t h a  pape r  o f  

M r .  Lasn ick?  
.- 

Q Did your  husband e v a r  l i v e  i n  New 
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Q Was your  husband a v e r  a r r a e t e d  and 

chargad  w i t h  any crimes i n  Naw J e r s e y ?  

A No 0 

Q I n  t h e  v a h i c l e  t h a t  your  hueband was 
--- 

d r i v i n g  on February  2 1 ,  1975, th? d a t a  o f  h i s  d a a t h ,  

t h e r e  was soma union c a r d s  i n  t h e  t r u n k .  

A - J u s t  from hisJob. --- 

8 They appeared  t o  be some s t r i k e  c a r d s ?  

A Yes,  because  t h a t  w a s  work ha was 

h i r a d f o  do. How do you c a l l  it? 
.-A-d . 

Q P i c k e t s ?  ._ 

Q Then I would assume t h a t  ha was 

i n v o l v s d  i n  un ion  a c t i v i t i e s ?  

A No, but he was f o r c e d  by the union i n  
-- 

o r d e r  to g i v e  him a  j ob  l a t e r  on o r  a f t e r w a r d .  - - -  

Q The ca r  t h a t  be longed t o  A l b e r t ~  

Rodriguez was'removad from t h e  scene on t h e  day o f  

t h e  s h o o t i n g ?  .. 
A I waa t h r  on8  who t o o k  it w i t h  a f r i a n d  

of m y  husband. We t ook  it t o  t h e  house  and t h e n  I 

j u s t  gave it back. 

Q Is A l b e r t o  Rodriguez a  Cuban o r  P u a r t o .  
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, 
A Cuban. 

Q Is he involved in any political activia 

tie8 that you know of? 

A He was a friend of my husband and ha 

was in agreement with the position that my husband 

had. 

Q Do you know William Salon? 

A No, I heard his name mentioned but I 

do not know him. 

Q Do you know if ha was a friend of your 

husband? 

Q Are you aware of any meetings that 

Mr. Valantin Hernandez had with your husband? 

A NO. They wars not'friends. 

Q After the incident with the chair, are 

you aware of any mastinge that Mr. Hernandez had with 

your husband and Mr. Letsnick? 
.- 

A I don't know anything about that. Wait 

a minute. I know that they triad to have my husband 

withdraw the chargcs~, but I don't know what cam. out- 

of that. 
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Q Did you know a M r ,  Limon or Mr, Limus? 

Q D o  you know t h e  man who w a s  w i t h  your  

husband a t  t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  a l l s g s d  a t t a c k  wikh t h e  

c h a i r  t o o k  p l a c e ?  a 

A Mike Lsmus, L-e-m-u-8. H e  i s  a 

a e c u r i t y  man, 

Q D o  you know whrra M r ,  Lemus  it^ today?  

A No, I hava n o t  hea rd  o f  him f o r  a  

l ong  t i m e ,  

Q The c o n f r o n t a t i o n  w i t h  M r ,  Lazo a t  t h e  

Grand Union, w a s  t h e r e  any p h y s i c a l  c o n t a c t  o r  touch-  

i n g  batwsen Mr, Niuves and Mr. Lazo? 

A No, j u s t  t a l k i n g .  

Q Does t h e  name Galindo maan a n y t h i n g  t o  

you r e l a t i v e  t o  t h a t  i n c i d e n t  a t  t h e  Grand Union? 

A I d o n ' t  know i f  t h a t  i s  t h e  name o f  t h  

man who was w i t h  Lazo or  n o t ,  I know t h a t  h e  was 

a n  employs@ o f  Canada Dry. 

Q D o  you know A b i l i o  Carrera? 

A Yes 

h e  a f r i e n d  of your  husband? 

A Y e s ,  
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Q When was t h e  l a e t  t i m e  you s a w  him? 

A I saw him t h e  day t h e y  war8 summoned 

f o r  t h e  t r i a l ,  I saw him h e r e ,  

Q Is h e  a social  f r i e n d  of t h a  f ami ly?  

A ~e l i v e s  f a r  away, W e  d o n ' t  844 eaah 
J 

o t h e r  v e r y  o f t e n ,  

Q D o  you know Jose Hernandez who usad Lo 

l i v e  i n  Hia leah?  

A I d o n ' t  remember, 

Q What a b o u t  Sa lvado r  ~ l d a r e g u i a ?  

A YQS 

Q What do you know h im from? 

A I have n o t  Sean him i n  a l o n g  t i m a .  I 

knew him from s w i n g  h im w i t h  Luciano,  

Q D o  you know h i s  p r a s s n t  whsrsabouts?  

A No. 

MR. BARONE: T h a t ' s  a l l  I have. 

MR. KAYE: I have no q u e s t i o n s ,  

1 guess  w s  w i l l  waive. 

(Thereupon, t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  

was conc luded , )  

(Reading,  s i g n i n g  and n o t i c e  

of f i l i n g  waived , )  
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CERTIFICATE - - 
STATE OF FLORIDA) 

SS 
COUNTY OF DADE ) 

I ,  LONNIE C. MORRIS,  a Notary P u b l i c  

i n  and f o r  t h a  S ta te  of  F l o r i d a  a t  Large, do hereby  

c e r t i f y  t h a t  I r a p o r t a d  t h e  d b p o s i t i o n  o f  MILAGROS 

NIEVES, a w i t n e s s  c a l l e d  by t h e  Dafandant  i n  t h e  

above - s ty l sd  cause ;  t h a t  t h e  s a i d  w i t n e s s  was du ly  

sworn by me; and t h a t  the f o r e g o i n g  pagas ,  numbarad 

from 1 t o  73 ,  i n c l u s i v e ,  c o n s t i t u t a  a t r u e  r e c o r d  

o f  t h o  d a p o s i t i o n  by sa id  w i t n e s s .  

I f u r t h e r  c e r t i f y  t h a t  I a m  n o t  a n  

a t t o r n e y  o r  counsa l  o f  any of t h e  p a r t i e s ,  n o r  a 

r e l a t i v e  or employas o f  any a t t o r n e y  o r  coun88l  

connec ted  w i t h  t h e  a c t i o n ,  n o r  f i n a n c i a l l y  i n t e r -  

WITNESS my hand and saal  a t  ~ i a m i ,  

F l o r i d a ,  t h i s ' 2 0 t h  day of  November 1977. 

aL Largs  
My Commission e x p i r e s :  7/5/81 
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